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Directors’ Report To The Members

We are pleased to present the reviewed financial statements of JS Bank Limited (“JSBL”) along
with the reviewed consolidated financial statements of its subsidiaries JS Global Capital Limited
and JS Investments Limited for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

The Economy

As the year progresses, economic growth has slowed down. Almost all major macro indicators
such as the consumer price index (CPl), fiscal debt-to-GDP ratio and local interest rates show
worrisome signs. On the macroeconomic front, the twin deficits (current account deficit and
budget deficit) continue to grow at a challenging rate.

Inflation has started to inch up with the average for the second quarter of the calendar year
(2QCY18) standing at 4.36% (3.82% in 1QCY18) with higher increases expected going forward
due to a rise in international crude oil prices and the substantial devaluation of the Pakistani
Rupee (PKR). Without any meaningful inflows in the country’s financial accounts, the country’s
foreign exchange reserves have depleted over the year. By the end of the second quarter
(2QCY18), the foreign exchange reserves held by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) fell to a low
of USD 16.4 billion.

During financial year 2018 (FY18), trade deficit continued to increase (+16% Year-on-Year
(YoY) to USD 37,670 million) as growth in imports (+15% YoY to USD 60,898 million) outpaced
exports growth (+14% YoY to USD 23,228 million). Apart from an increasing deficit, growth
in foreign remittances was below expectations settling at USD 18,028 million during the year
(up 3% YoY only). This resulted in a massive current account deficit of USD 15,961 million (up
+43% YoY) or 5.5% of GDP during the first 11 month of FY18 (11MFY18) as compared to 4.0%
recorded in the corresponding period of the previous year. The resulting consequences have
had an impact on the currency exchange rate as the PKR continued to slide against the USD in
the interbank market, depreciating by ~15% during FY18.

Banking sector review

In the first half of calendar year 2018, SBP increased the policy rate by a cumulative 75 basis
points (bps), taking it to 6.50% and continuing the monetary tightening cycle. However, banking
spreads during the first five months of CY2018 (5MCY18) further dropped to an average of
4.78%, marking a 15 bps YoY decline. As per SBP, banking deposits touched PKR 13,063 billion
during the same period, registering a growth of 9% YoY by the end of the quarter. Advances
also continued their upward trajectory with 19% YoY growth to PKR 7,362 billion owing to a
steady increase in project financing and consumer loan demand while growth in private sector
credit was 17% YoY by the end of June 2018. As a result, the Advances-to-Deposit Ratio (ADR)
for the industry increased to 56%. The non-performing loans (NPLs) for the industry declined
to PKR 600 billion (as of March 2018), while the infection ratio for the industry improved to 9%.
Overall investments remained at PKR 8,179 billion similar to the period last year. As a result, the
Investment-to-Deposit Ratio (IDR) decreased to 63%.
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Directors’ Report To The Members

Financial Performance

During the period under review, the Bank earned profit before tax of PKR 1,109 million (profit
after tax of PKR 684 million) for the half year ended June 30, 2018 as compared to profit before
tax of PKR 621 million (profit after tax of PKR 284 million) in the corresponding period last year.
The increase in profit was mainly due to healthy growth in advances and an increase in business
of advisory services and trade volumes. However, the administrative expenses increased due
to expansion of the branch network and embarking on new initiatives as compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

Deposits and advances increased from PKR 290.1 billion and PKR 184.5 billion to PKR 310.9
billion and PKR 228.5 billion respectively during the half year, which reflects continued focus of
the Bank on core business activities.

Business Overview

JS Bank continued with its impressive balance sheet growth largely on the back of aggressive
deposit mobilization. The Bank’s strategy is based on identifying and fulfiling customer needs
through product innovation, alliances and automation of service delivery. Customer accessibility
was strengthened through an expansion in the branch network, digital channels and branchless
banking agents to provide customers an efficient and satisfying banking experience. JS Bank
operates 323 branches and 294 ATMs across 161 cities including one overseas wholesale
banking branch in Manama, Bahrain.

The Bank remained focused on core deposit mobilization, particularly targeting growth in low
cost deposits (Current and Savings Accounts — CASA). Significant growth in the CASA deposit
base has been augmented by establishment of sales channels and segments dedicated to
deposit growth, providing greater stability and strength to the Bank.

The Bank has embarked on several initiatives to strengthen its product line including variants of
value-added current accounts to expand its deposit relationships in several segments including
business accounts, employee banking, private banking, cash management relationships,
corporate deposits and technology-based solutions.

On the assets side, there was increased focus on prudent expansion in advances with a holistic
product range designed around customer needs with diversified growth in public sector lending
(GoP backed), corporate, commercial, Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) and consumer
banking. In addition to traditional lending segments, the Bank enhanced its focus on the SME
landscape through a relationship lending model, operating through several SME hub branches.
Furthermore, the secured consumer lending volumes picked up substantially through 2018.
The leasing business has also developed a healthy portfolio catering to most industrial sectors
of the economy. The Bank grew its Prime Minister’s Youth Business Loans (PMYBL) portfolio
by forming multiple alliances with Pakistan’s leading businesses in order to promote self-
employment within their value chains. JS Bank exceeded its SBP-assigned Agriculture Credit
targets with a clean portfolio, paving the way for sustainable expansion in the coming years.
The Bank continued to develop its gold finance portfolio and extended the proposition to its
agri-based customers.
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Directors’ Report To The Members

The Bank is making concerted efforts to optimize the revenue mix between mark-up and fee-
based income. In addition to growing traditional fee income streams, the Bank has increased
focus on cross selling various fee-based products to existing and new customers.

Credit Ratings

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned to the Bank a long-term
rating of “AA-" (Double A Minus), and a short-term rating of “A1+” (A One Plus) which is the
highest possible for this category.

Subsidiary Companies

JS Global Capital Limited

JS Global Capital Limited (“JS Global”) is one of the largest securities brokerage and investment
banking firms in Pakistan with a leadership position in the domestic capital markets.

JS Global has shareholders’ equity of PKR 2,614.8 million as at June 30, 2018. It is listed on
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. JS Bank has 67.16% ownership of the company

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned long-term and short-term entity
ratings to JS Global of “AA” (Double A) and “A1+” (A One plus), respectively. The ratings denote
a very low expectation of credit risk emanating from very strong capacity for timely payment of
financial commitments.

Summarized results of JS Global are set out below: PKR Million
For the Six For the Six
Particulars Months ended  Months ended

June 30,2018  June 30, 2017
(Un Audited) (Un Audited)

Profit before tax 86.2 172.1
Profit after tax 19.0 116.7
EPS (Rupees) 0.50 3.07

Decrease in profits is mainly due to lower trading volume at the equity market.
JS Investments Limited

JS Investments is an Investment Adviser and Asset Management Company under the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules)
and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Regulations). In addition, JS Investments is also a licensed Pension Fund Manager under the
Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, to manage voluntary pension schemes.
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Directors’ Report To The Members

JS Investments had shareholders’ equity of PKR 2,365.6 million as at June 30, 2018. It is listed
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. JS Bank has 65.16% ownership of the company.

JS Investments has a Management Quality Rating of “AM2, with stable outlook” assigned by
JCR-VIS and long and short-term credit ratings of “A+” (A Plus) and A1 (A One) assigned by
PACRA.

Summarized results of JS Investments are set out below:

PKR Million
For the Six For the Six
Particulars Months ended Months ended

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
(Un Audited) (Un Audited)

Profit before tax 15.6 67.2
Profit after tax 15.4 il 8
EPS (Rupees) 0.19 0.39

Decrease in profits is mainly due to diminution in remuneration from funds under management
and dividend income.

Acknowledgments

On behalf of JS Bank, | would like to extend our gratitude to our customers and stakeholders
for their patronage. | would also like to thank the Ministry of Finance, the State Bank of Pakistan,
the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and other regulatory authorities for their
support to our Bank. Finally, | extend our appreciation to the management team and staff for
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President & CEO Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of JS Bank Limited
Report on review of Interim Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim statement of
financial position of JS Bank Limited as at 30 June 2018, the related unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity, and unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-
month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the "interim financial statements").
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the financial
statements based on our review. The figures of the condensed interim profit and loss account
and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the three months ended

30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 have not been reviewed, as we are required to review only
the cumulative figures for the six months period ended 30 June 2018.

Scope of review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity"”. A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's review report is
Shaikh Ahmed Salman.

ired Accountants

Place. Karachi
Date: 27 August 2018

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018 11



Unconsolidated Condensed Interim
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments - net

Advances - net

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities - net

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:

Share capital

Discount on issue of shares
Preference shares
Reserves

Unappropriated profit

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

-
o © ™~

11

12

13
13
13

14

15

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
———————— Rupees in ‘000 --------
21,775,238 17,338,788
492,809 1,034,266
1,648,157 3,116,199
145,574,166 169,611,558
228,478,689 184,139,582
8,129,453 7,112,821
7,880,256 5,960,662
413,978,768 388,308,876
4,399,606 3,824,278
67,606,161 64,557,043
310,954,019 290,077,566
4,997,800 4,998,800
441,963 796,803
8,902,641 7,385,057
397,302,190 371,639,547
16,676,578 16,669,329
12,974,643 10,724,643
(2,855,401) (2,105,401)
- 1,500,000
1,709,145 1,540,988
4,891,077 4,518,820
16,719,464 16,179,050
(42,886) 490,279
16,676,578 16,669,329

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed

interim financial statements.

Chairman President and Director

Chief Executive Officer

12 JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018
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Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Profit and Loss Account (Un-audited)
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note =~ --------momemmee Rupees in ‘000 ----------=-------------

Mark-up / return / interest earned 14,010,364 8,484,385 7,141,446 4,567,261

Mark-up / return / interest expensed 9,632,196 5,783,411 4,841,895 3,104,518

Net mark-up / interest income 4,378,168 2,700,974 2,299,551 1,462,743

Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net (123,867) (78,638) (73,837) (19,739)

Reversal against diminution in the value of investments 31,653 - 31,653 -

Bad debts written off directly - - - -

(92,214) (78,638) (42,184) (19,739)

Net mark-up / return / interest income after provisions 4,285,954 2,622,336 2,257,367 1,443,004

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income 1,451,874 1,104,472 592,343 642,418

Dividend income 65,031 91,890 57,501 91,890

Income from dealing in foreign currencies 240,012 133,174 156,762 70,652

(Loss) / gain on sale of securities - net (42,375) 359,178 (60,388) 185,630
Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments

classified as held-for-trading - net (891) 1,948 817) (504,992)

Other income - net 142,066 63,369 42,250 25,216

Total non-mark-up / interest income 1,855,717 1,754,031 787,651 510,814

6,141,671 4,376,367 3,045,018 1,953,818

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Administrative expenses 4,944,093 3,729,974 2,357,472 1,726,103
Other provision - net 16 65,718 - 108,086 -
Other charges 22,715 25,422 11,483 17,213
Total non mark-up / interest expenses 5,032,526 3,755,396 2,477,041 1,743,316

1,109,145 620,971 567,977 210,502

Extra ordinary / unusual items = o - -

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1,109,145 620,971 567,977 210,502
Taxation

- Current (432,107) (218,083) (259,817) (173,731)

- Prior years - (115,944) - (115,944)

- Deferred 7,257 (2,799) 23,893 95,738

17 (424,850) (336,826) (235,924) (193,937)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 684,295 284,145 332,053 16,565

Rupee
Basic and diluted earnings per share 18 0.41 0.10 0.26 0.02

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chairman President and Director Director Chief Financial
Chief Executive Officer Officer

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018 13



Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017

———————————————————————— RlipeesInRO0UESSE e
Profit after taxation 684,295 284,145 332,053 16,565
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - - - -

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branch 31,298 21 18,670 (347)

Comprehensive income transferred to equity 715,593 284,166 350,723 16,218
Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale securities (1,404,026) (514,445) (1,032,225) (443,500)
Related deferred tax asset 491,409 180,056 361,279 155,225

(912,617) (334,389) (670,946) (288,275)
Total comprehensive loss for the period - net of tax (197,024) (50,223) (320,223) (272,057)

Surplus on revaluation of ‘operating fixed assets - net of tax’ and ‘non-banking assets - net of tax’ is presented under a separate
head below equity as ‘ surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax’ in accordance with the disclosure format for quarterly/ interim
financial statements of banks as prescribed by SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 2 of May 12, 2004 and Regulation for Debt
Property Swap issued vide BPRD Circular No. 1 dated January 01, 2016.

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chairman President and Director Director Chief Financial
Chief Executive Officer Officer

14  JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018



Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Balance as at January 01, 2017 (Audited)
Total comprehensive income for the
half year ended June 30, 2017

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on
account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net

Transaction with owners recorded directly in equity

Preference dividend paid for the year ended
December 31, 2016 @ 12% p.a

Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at June 30, 2017 (Un-audited)

Total comprehensive income for the
period ended December 31, 2017

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive Income / (loss)

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on
account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net

Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Total comprehensive income for the
half year ended June 30, 2018

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on
account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net

Transaction with owners recorded directly in equity

Preference dividend paid for the year ended
December 31, 2017 @ 12% p.a.

Preference shares cancelled on conversion
into ordinary shares during the period (note13)

Issuance of ordinary shares on conversion
of preference shares during the period (note13)

Discount on issue of ordinary shares
during the period (note13)

Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Discount Reserves
Share on issue of Preference Exchange  Unappropriated
capital shares shares Statutory * translation profit Total
Rupees in ‘000

10,724,643  (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,334,139 (17) 8,973,341 15,426,705
- - - - - 284,145 284,145

- - - - 21 - 21

= = E 21 284,145 284,166

= = = = = 107 107

. ) 5 - 5 (180,000)  (180,000)

= - - 56,829 - (56,829) -

10,724,643  (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,390,968 4 4,020,764 15,530,978
- || - || - || - || || 689004” 689,004

= = = = 12,215 (65,602] (43,387)

= = = 12,215 633,402 645,617

= = = = = 2,348 2,348

= = = = = 107 107

= = = 137,801 - (137,801) =
10,724,643  (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,528,769 12,219 4,518,820 16,179,050
- | | N | | - | | - | - 684,295 684,295

- - - - 31,298 - 31,298

- - - - 31,298 684,295 715,593

- - - - - 4,714 4,714

- - - - - 107 107

- - - - - (180,000) (180,000)

B N (1,500,000) - - = (1,500,000)
2,250,000 - - - - - 2,250,000
- (750,000 - - - - (750,000)
2,250,000  (750,000) - B B - 1,500,000

- - - 136,859 - (136,859) -

12,974,643  (2,855,401) - 1,665,628 43,517 4,891,077 16,719,464

* This represents reserve created under Section 21(j)(a) of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chairman

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Director

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

Director

Chief Financial
Officer
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Unconsolidated Condensed Interim
Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Depreciation on non-banking assets

Amortisation of intangibles

Charge for defined benefit plan

Unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of investments
classified as held-for-trading - net

Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net

Reversal against diminution in the value of investments
Other provision - net

Unrealised gain on revaluation of derivative instruments
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

Provision for Sindh Workers’” Welfare Fund

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities

Advances

Other assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities

Income tax paid
Gratuity paid
Net cash (used in) / flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investment in available-for-sale securities

Net investment in held-to maturity securities
Investment in associated company

Dividend received

Investments in operating fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid on preference shares
Sub-ordinated loans

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

—————— Rupees in ‘000 ------

1,109,145 620,971
(65,031) (91,890)
1,044,114 529,081
329,237 288,017
650 650
33,641 28,382
84,109 84,563
891 (1,948)
123,867 78,638
(31,653) :
65,718 c
(152,072) (20,257)
(51,820) (19,744)
2,18 12,419
424.751 751,620
7,468,865 980,701
1,459,376 8,373,886
3,798,298 42,909/549
(44,476,815) (33,436,214)
(1.078.284) (1.416.444)
{40,297,425) 16,430,777
575,328 2,201,649
3,124,520 36,481,020
20,876,453 36,291,941
1,586,409 1,389,131
26.162.710 76.363.741
(12,665,850) 93,775,219
a ,063,981; ?888,041%
(175.118 118.308
(13,904,949) 93,268,870
18,750,707 (73,855,197)
09,556 (14.307,432)
(180,000) 2
49,385 75,432
(875,782) (651,224)
76,192 32,935
18,030,058 (88,705,486)

(780,000 | | (180,000% |
(1.000 (600
(181,000 (180,600)
31,298 21
3,975,407 4,382,805
18,169,058 16.221,150
22,144,465 20,603,955

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial

statements.

Chairman President and Director

Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 JS Bank Limited (the Bank / JSBL), incorporated in Pakistan, is a scheduled bank,
engaged in commercial banking and related services. The Bank’s ordinary shares
are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The Bank is a subsidiary of
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (JSCL). The registered office of the Bank is situated
at Shaheen Commercial Complex, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi. The Bank
operates with 322 (December 31, 2017: 322) branches / sub-branches in Pakistan
and one wholesale banking branch in Bahrain (December 31, 2017: one). The
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has asigned the long-term entity
rating of the Bank to ‘AA-’ (Double A Minus) and short-term entity rating at ‘A1+" (A
One Plus), which is the highest possible short-term rating. The ratings denote a very
low expectation of credit risk and indicate very strong capacity for timely payment of

financial commitments.

1.2 Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, JSIBL, (formerly Citicorp Investment
Bank Limited which was acquired by JSCL on February 01, 1999), and its holding
company, JSCL, entered into a Framework Agreement with American Express Bank
Limited, New York (AMEX) on November 10, 2005 for acquisition of its American
Express Bank Limited - Pakistan Branches, (AEBL). Consequently, a new banking
company, JSBL was incorporated on March 15, 2006 and a restricted Banking

License was issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on May 23, 2006.

1.3 A Transfer Agreement was executed on June 24, 2006 between JSIBL and JSBL
for the transfer of entire business and undertaking of JSIBL to JSBL and a separate
Transfer Agreement was also executed on June 24, 2006, between AMEX and JSBL
for the transfer of AEBL's commercial banking business in Pakistan with all assets
and liabilities (other than certain excluded assets and liabilities) (AEBL business). The
shareholders of JSIBL and JSBL in their respective extra ordinary general meetings
held on July 31, 2006 approved a Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under
Section 48 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. The Scheme was initially
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its
letter No. SC/NBFC(J)-R/JSIBL/2006/517 dated September 28, 2006. Subsequently,
the Scheme was sanctioned by the SBP vide its order dated December 02, 2006 and,
in accordance therewith, the effective date of amalgamation was fixed at December

30, 2006.
2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1 These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements of the Bank have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standards (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the

Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance,

1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018



Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with
the requirements of IAS 34, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance,

1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.

2.2 The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the
applicability of International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40,
Investment Property (IAS 40) for Banking companies till further instructions. Further,
according to the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) dated April 28, 2008, the IFRS - 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has not
been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards
have not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in

accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

2.3 IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’ is effective for the Bank’s accounting period beginning
on or after January 01, 2009. All banking companies in Pakistan are required to
prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under
BSD Circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006, ‘Revised Forms of Annual Financial
Statements’, effective from the accounting year ended December 31, 2006.
The management of the Bank believes that as the SBP has defined the segment
categorization in the above mentioned circular, the SBP’s requirements prevail over
the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed
in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements is based on the

requirements laid down by the SBP.

2.4 |IFRS10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” was made applicable from period
beginning on or after January 01, 2015 vide S.R.O 633(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014
by SECP. However, SECP has directed that the requirements of consolidation under
section 237 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and IFRS-10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” are not applicable in case of investment by companies in mutual funds
established under trust structure, through S.R.O 56(1) /2016 dated January 28, 2016.
Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the

preparation of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

2.5 The disclosures made in this unconsolidated condensed interim financial information
have been limited based on the format prescribed by the SBP vide BSD Circular
No. 2 dated May 12, 2004 and International Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim
Financial Reporting’ and do not include all the disclosures required in the annual
financial statements. Accordingly, these unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements

of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

5.1

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that certain assets are stated at revalued
amounts / fair value as disclosed in the respective notes of the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions used in the preparation of
these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Bank for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation
of these condensed interim financial statements are the same as those applied in the
preparation of the annual audited financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2017 except as below.

Surplus / Deficit on Revaluation of Operating Fixed Assets

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance) was repealed through the
enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017. However, as directed by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide circular number 23 dated
Oct 4, 2017, the financial reporting requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were
only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.

The repealed Ordinance specified the accounting treatment for the surplus on
revaluation on fixed assets, wherein, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular
property was to be adjusted against the total balance in the surplus account or, if no
surplus existed, was to be charged to the profit and loss account as an impairment
of the asset. However, the Companies Act, 2017 removed the specific provisions
allowing the above treatment and hence, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular
property is now to be accounted for in accordance with applicable financial reporting
standards, which requires that such deficit is to be taken to the profit and loss account
as an impairment.

Conseqguently, the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on
revaluation of fixed assets and accordingly, any surplus/deficit arising on revaluation
of owned property and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is
accounted for at individual assets level. The above change in accounting policy did
not have any effect on these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

7.1

20

5.2 Adoption of IFRS 9 by foriegn oprations (Bahrain Branch)

Duringthecurrentperiod, theBank’sBahrainOperations, inlinewiththeirlocallyapplicable
regulatory framework, has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’. As permitted by
the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Branch elected not to restate comparative
figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the
date of transition were recognised in the profit and loss account of the current period.

The financial effects due to the adoption of IFRS 9 by the Bahrain branch on these
interim condensed financial statements are as follows:

(Un-audited)
June 30,
2018
Rupees in ‘000
General provision - under IFRS-9

Balances with other banks 12
Lendings to financial institutions 8,666
Investments - net 85,567
Advances - net 13,841
Decrease in profit before tax 108,086
Related deferred tax asset (37,830)
Decrease in profit after tax 70,256

5.3 New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory
for the banks accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are
considered not to be relevant on the Bank operations and therefore not detailed in
these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies applied during the period are
consistent with those disclosed in the annual financial statements of the Bank for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31
2018 2017
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Note ---------- Rupees in ‘000 ----------
Call money lendings - net of provision 71 1,648,157 3,003,443
Due against bills re-discounting - 112,756
1,648,157 3,116,199

The amount is net of general provision of Rs.8.67 million resulted from adoption of IFRS 9
by Bahrain Branch (see note 5.2).
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

8.1

INVESTMENTS - net

INVESTMENTS BY TYPES:
Held-for-trading securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds
Available-for-sale securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Preference shares of listed companies
Term finance certificates - listed

Term finance certificates - unlisted
Sukuk certificates - unlisted

Foreign currency bonds
Held-to-maturity securities

Pakistan investment bonds
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associate

Total investments at cost

Less: Provision for diminution in the

value of investments

Less: General provision - under IFRS-9

Investments (net of provision)

Unrealised loss on revaluation of

investments classified as held-for-trading

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale securities

Total investments at market value

(Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Held by Given as Held by Given as
Bank collateral Total Bank collateral Total
Note  —ooee Rupees in ‘000 ----------m-mmmmmmmmm oo

4,670,853 - 4,670,853 6,835,735 926,032 7,761,767
- - - 709,872 = 709,872
4,670,853 - 4,670,853 7,645,607 926,032 8,471,639
825,877 - 825,877 11,501,193 2,991,504 14,492,697
37,162,031 | | 48,616,601 85,778,632 54,600,373 | 39,372,049 | 93,972,422
8.1.1| 3,788,744 - 3,788,744 3,681,463 S 3,681,463
13,406 - 13,406 13,406 = 13,406
136,589 - 136,589 136,589 = 136,589
182,322 - 182,322 182,322 = 182,322
8.1.2 614,882 - 614,882 575,596 = 575,596
899,333 - 899,333 1,631,000 = 1,631,000
3,708,080| | 4,318,557 8,026,637 1,899,702 2,431,932 4,331,634
47,331,264 52,935,158 100,266,422 74,221,644 44,795,485 119,017,129
41,188,929 - 41,188,929 41,398,485 = 41,398,485
1,919,121 - 1,919,121 1,919,121 = 1,919,121

8.1.3 180,000 - 180,000 - - -
95,290,167 52,935,158 148,225,325 125,084,857 45,721,517 170,806,374
(1,040,198) - (1,040,198) (1,071,851) = (1,071,851)

5.2 (85,567) - (85,567) - = -
94,164,402 52,935,158 147,099,560 124,013,006 45,721,517 169,734,523
(891) - (891) (2,474) (14) (2,488)
(421,529) (1,102,974) (1,524,503) 75,006 (195,483) (120,477)
93,741,982 51,832,184 145,574,166 124,085,538 45,526,020 169,611,558
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

8.1.1 Included herein are the investments in related parties amounting to Rs.1,806.637 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs.1,763.581 million) having market value of Rs.2,465.320 million

(December 31, 2017: Rs.2,296.841 million).

8.1.2 |ncluded herein is the investment of Rs. 65.022 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.65.022
million) in a related party at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% maturing on December
04, 2017. Due to weak financial position of the investee the Bank has recognised full

impairment loss on these Term Finance Certificates.

8.1.3 During the period, the Bank has invested in the shares of Omer Jibran Enginering Industries
Limited, a public unlisted company (9.6% shareholding). The Bank has classified the
investment as associate on account of it's significant influence over the investee company.

Note
9. ADVANCES - net

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.
In Pakistan
Outside Pakistan
Net investment in finance lease in Pakistan
Bills discounted and purchased (excluding treasury bills)

Payable in Pakistan
Payable outside Pakistan

Advances - gross

Provision against non-performing advances - specific 9.1
Provision against advances - general
General provision - under IFRS-9 5.2

Advances - net of provision

2o JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Un-audited)

June 30,
2018

(Audited)

December 31,

2017

-------- Rupees in ‘000 ------

200,468,413 160,635,485
1,541,643 702,934
202,010,056 161,338,419
17,281,529 13,781,334
7,178,298| | 6,174,461
4,885,827|| 5,584,681
12,064,125 11,759,142
231,355,710 186,878,895
2,722,959)| [ (2,638,960)
(140,221)||  (100,353)
(13,841) :
(2,877,021)  (2,739,313)
228,478,689 184,139,582




Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

9.1 Advances include Rs. 3,642.861 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.3,257.997 million) which
have been placed under non-performing status as detailed below:

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Domestic Overseas Total Provi;ion Provision
Category of classification required held
Rupees in ‘000
Other assets especially
mentioned 300,985 - 300,985 1,279 1,279
Substandard 227,744 - 227,744 47,261 47,261
Doubtful 305,892 - 305,892 55,381 55,381
Loss 2,808,240 - 2,808,240 2,619,038 2,619,038
3,642,861 - 3,642,861 2,722,959 2,722,959

December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Domestic Overseas Total IFTESIeTR FICUEIE
Category of classification required held
Rupees in ‘000
Other assets especially
mentioned 5,222 - 5,222
Substandard 336,818 - 336,818 44,307 44,307
Doubtful 131,328 - 131,328 7,333 7,333
Loss 2,784,629 - 2,784,629 2,587,320 2,587,320
3,257,997 - 3,257,997 2,638,960 2,638,960

10. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

During the period, the Bank has made additions of Rs.875.782 million including capital
work in process of Rs.325.908 million (June 30, 2017: Rs.651.224 million) and deletions
of Rs.192.567 million (June 30, 2017: Rs.48.313 million) having written down value of Rs.
24.372 million (June 30, 2017: Rs.13.191 million).
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Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

11.  DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS Note

Customers

Fixed deposits

Savings deposits

Current accounts - non-remunerative
Margin accounts

Financial institutions
Remunerative deposits
Non-remunerative deposits

11.1

11.1 Particulars of deposits
In local currency
In foreign currencies

12. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - net
Deferred tax debits arising from:

Provision against investments

Provision against loans and advances

Provision against other assets

General provision - under IFRS-9

Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments
classified as held-for-trading

Provision for Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund

Surplus on revaluation of investments classified
as available-for-sale

Deferred tax credits arising due to:

Operating fixed assets
Goodwill
Unrealised gain on revaluation of derivative instruments
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets

acquired in satisfaction of claims

24  JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Un-audited)

June 30,
2018
-- Rupees in ‘000 -----

(Audited)
December 31,
2017

128,569,643 131,902,422
58,239,309 47,266,416
73,300,179 70,197,106

4,396,048 3,967,204

264,505,179 253,333,148

45,298,614| 35,724,471
1,150,226| | 1,019,947
46,448,840 36,744,418

310,054,019 290,077,566

296,084,339 276,922,230
14,869,680 _ 13,155,336

310,954,019 290,077,566

(57,149) (57,149)
(16,988) (3,5293)

(853) (15,682
(37,830) :

312) (871)
(26,145) (26,145)
(533,576) (42,167)
(672,853) (145,537)
214,093 214,793
512,268 512,268
57,172 25,007
329,149 187,861

2,134 2,191
1,114,816 942,340
441,963 796.803




Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

13.
13.1

13.2

14.

141

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

During the period, after having SBP approval vide its letter No. ‘BPRD/LD-01/602-
AM&A0A/16933/2018-8446’, the shareholders of the Bank in their Annual General Meeting
held on March 07, 2018 increased its authorised capital by Rs.5 billion, divided into 500
million ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

On February 19, 2018, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Bank has also
increased by Rs. 2,250 million divided into 225 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.
The increase was on account of conversion of unlisted preference shares of Rs. 1,500
million divided into 150 million shares of Rs. 10 each at a conversion ratio of 1:1.5 (i.e.
for every one preference share one and half ordinary shares were issued). The ordinary
shares are issued at Rs. 6.67 per share i.e. at a discount of Rs. 3.33 per share as per the
approvals of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter No. EMD/
Cl/102/2010 dated December 19, 2013 and State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter No.
BPRD/BA&CA/649/19755/2013 dated December 30, 2013.

As at June 30, 2018, Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (the parent company) held 973,307,324
(December 31, 2017: 755,245,007) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and controls 75.02%
holding (December 31, 2017: 70.42%).

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Note = --—--- Rupees in ‘000 -----

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax

Available-for-sale securities (990,927) (78,310)
Operating fixed assets 141 853,098 473,539
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 94,943 95,050

(42,886) 490,279

During the periord the Bank has carried out the revaluation exercise by an independent
valuer, which has resulted in additional surplus on leasehold lands and buildings of
Rs.117.166 million and Rs.410.933 million over their existing written down value of Rs.
1,088.960 million and Rs.1,331.119 million, respectively.

The fair values were determined with reference to market based evidence, based on
active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered necessary, and
adjusted for any difference in nature, location or condition of the specific properties.

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of leasehold lands and buildings would
have been lower by Rs.241.820 million and Rs. 940.426 million respectively, and net
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, deferred tax liability and increamental depreciation
would have been lower by Rs.853.097 million, Rs. 329.149 million and Rs. 7.252 million
respectively.
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(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
Nl ======== Rupees in ‘000 --------

15. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
15.1 Transaction-related contingent liabilities

Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, advance

ayment guarantees, shipping guarantees and standby
etters of credit related to particular

transactions

i) Government 30,721,495 31,008,823

i) Banking companies and other financial institutions 6,305,043 5,532,988

iy Others 4,073,271 8,477,789

156.1.1 _41,099,809 45,019,600

15.1.1 Included herein the outstanding guarantees of Rs.13.201 million (December 31, 2017:
Rs.31.454 million) of related parties.

15.2 Trade-related contingent liabilities

Documentary credits 15.2.1 21,483,396 21,558,098

15.2.1 Included herein is an outstanding amount of Rs.63.808 million (December 31, 2017:
Rs.44.016 million) of related parties.

15.3 Commitments in respect of forward lending

Forward commitment to extend credit 1,357,014 21,398,301

15.4 Commitments in respect of capital expenditures 229,650 94,975

15.5 Commitments in respect of derivative instruments

15.5.1 Forward exchange contracts

Purchase 15,104,657 6,689,099
Sale 12,289,466 4,960,361

15.5.2 Forward investment securities

15.5.2.1Government securities

Purchase 258,005 1,496,072
Sale - 115,811
15.5.3 Cross currency swaps (notional principal) 4,940,680 4,223,400
15.5.4 Options (notional principal) 2,988,506 2,421,402
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16.

17.

Other provision - net

This includes additional provision made during the period on account of adoption of IFRS
9 by Bahrain branch of the Bank (see note 5.2), and reversal of provision against other
assets of Rs. 42.368 million.

Taxation

During the period, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has allowed the
appeal effects of tax years 2008-2013, in the light of appeal orders given by Commissioner
Inland Revenue — Appeals (the CIRA), as a result thereof effect of certain significant issues
have been allowed (i.e. accrued markup income, repair and maintenance expense, provision
against advances under Rule 1(c) of seventh schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
dividend income and partial reliefs given in reversal of provision against advances and
contract wages). Appeal effect of certain issues (amortisation of Goodwill and withholding
tax on contract wages) for which appeals of the tax department are pending at higher
appellate forums are kept pending and will be decided on outcome of such department
appeals. Appeal effect order is pending in respect of tax year 2014 and 2015

For tax year 2008, ACIR has allowed the appeal effect after consideration of the CIRA
decision that assessment in the year had become barred by time limitation and hence
additions or disallowances made through the first amendment order had not legal effect.
As a result of passing of appeal effect order, the income and tax liability have been reverted
to position as per the return filed.

For tax year 2010-2013, the Bank has not accepted the appeal effects in which benefits
are not allowed on the direction of the CIRA and filed further appeals with CIRA and
ACIR is directed to re-examine the issues in the light of directions of predecessor CIRA's
decision and issue revise appeal effect orders after duly adjudicating as per law ensuring
adequate opportunity of being heard to the Bank.

The management of Bank is confident that the appeals filed above and which are already
pending at Appellate Tribunal on matters where relief has not been allowed at CIRA level
will be decided in the Bank’s favor and accordingly no demand for payment would arise.
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18.

18.1

19.

28

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note =~ - Rupees in ‘000 --------=----=-=----=-—-
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation for the period - attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the
Bank for diluted earnings 684,295 284,145 332,053 16,565
Preference dividend paid
for the year ended December 31, 2017
@ 12% p.a. (December 31, 2016: 12% p.a) (180,000) (180,000) -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Bank for basic earnings 504,295 104,145 332,053 16,565
Weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares during the period
for basic and diluted earnings 1,236,552,660 1,072,464,262 1,297,464,262 1,072,464,262
Rupees
Basic and diluted earnings per share 18.1 0.41 0.10 0.26 0.02

The diluted earnings per share increased for the half year ended when taking the convertible
preference shares into account, therefore the convertible preference shares are anti-dilutive
and are excluded from the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share. Further, no impact of dilution has been taken for the quarter
ended June 30, 2018, due to conversions of preference shares as disclosed in note13 of
these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based
on quoted market price. Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and
fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to absence of current
and active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates
for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been
calculated in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy as stated in note 6.9 to the
annual audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

Management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and financial
liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities
are either short term in nature or in the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently
repriced.
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19.1

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires the Bank to classify fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value

hierarchy has following levels:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values

ltem

Valuation approach and input used

Shares of listed companies

Fair values of investments in listed equity securities are
valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices
available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Units of mutual funds

Fair values of investments in units of mutual funds are
determined based on redemption prices disclosed at
the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) as
at the close of the business days.

Pakistan Investment Bonds /
Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Market
Treasury Bills are derived using PKRV rates (Reuters
page).

Term Finance Certificates and Bonds

Investments in debt securities (comprising term finance
certificates, bonds and any other security issued by
a company or a body corporate for the purpose of
raising funds in the form of redeemable capital) are
valued on the basis of the rates announced by the
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) and
Bloomberg in case of foreign bonds, in accordance
with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted
in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. The valuation techniques take into
account the relevant underlying parameters including
foreign currencies involved, interest rates, yield curves,
volatilities, contracts duration, etc.
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19.2

30

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable.

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets classified as ‘held-for-trading’ securities

Market treasury bills

Financial assets classified as ‘available-for-sale’ securities
Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies

Foreign currency bonds

Non-Financial Assets

Revalued operating fixed assets

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Off balance sheet financial instruments

Forward government securities

Purchase

Forward exchange contracts

Purchase
Sale

Cross currency swaps (notional principal)

Options (notional principal)

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
————————————————————————— Rupees in ‘000 ----===========mmmmmmmmm
- 4,669,962 - 4,669,962
- 825,791 - 825,791
- || 84,304,268 - 84,304,268
3,774,996 - - 3,774,996
- 7,483,927 - 7,483,927
3,774,996 92,613,986 - 96,388,982
3,774,996 97,283,948 - 101,058,944
- - 2,948,179 2,948,179
- - 202,688 202,688
- - 3,150,867 3,150,867
3,774,996 97,283,948 3,150,867 104,209,811
- 258,417 - 258,417
- 15,450,873 - 15,450,873
- 12,509,974 - 12,509,974
- 5,690,832 - 5,690,832
- 3,002,639 - 3,002,639
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December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

————————————————————————— RiU2Es i) 000 commmmmmmemmmmmmmemnnes
On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets classified as ‘held-for-trading’ securities

Market Treasury Bills - 7,761,553 - 7,761,553
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 707,598 - 707,598
- 8,469,151 - 8,469,151

Financial assets classified as ‘available-for-sale’ securities

Market Treasury Bills - || 14,492,712 = 14,492,712
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 93,429,759 - 93,429,759
Ordinary shares of listed companies 3,546,572 - - 3,546,572
Foreign currency bonds - 4,350,638 - 4,350,638
3,646,572 112,273,109 - 115,819,681
3,646,572 120,742,260 - 124,288,832

Non-Financial Assets

Operating fixed assets = = 2,439,249 2,439,249
Non banking asset under satisfaction of claims 203,339 203,339

= = 2,642,588 2,642,588

3,646,572 120,742,260 2,642,688 126,931,420

Off balance sheet financial instruments

Forward exchange contracts
Purchase = 1,495,823 = 1,495,823

Sale = 116,000 = 116,000

Forward government securities

Purchase o 6,851,332 - 6,851,332
Sale = 5,061,071 = 5,061,071
Cross currency swaps (notional principal) = 4,489,958 = 4,489,958
Options (notional principal) = 2,426,276 = 2,426,276
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20. SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

2018
Trading Payment
Corporate and Retail Commercial and
finance sales banking banking settlement Others Total

Rupees in ‘000

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Total income - external 317,437 5,491,963 3,498,659 6,381,647 124,554 51,821 15,866,081
Inter-segment revenues - net - (2,733,386) 4,553,866 (1,820,480) - - -
Total income 317,437 2,758,577 8,052,525 4,561,167 124,554 51,821 15,866,081
Total expenses (53,866)  (2,896,846)  (7,138,210) (3,980,601) (59,058) (470,423) (14,599,004
Provisions / impairments - (62,591) (46,513) (91,196) - 42,368 (157,932)
Current taxation - - - - - (432,107) (432,107)
Deferred taxation - - - - - 7,257 7,257
Net income / (loss) 263,571 (200,860) 867,802 489,370 65,496 (801,084) 684,295

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Segment assets (gross) - 165,158,858 70,213,225 166,621,752 - 16,001,018 417,994,853
Ssg;‘:”‘ non performing - 1,040,198 926,813 2,716,048 - 13,209 4,696,358
Segment provision required - (1,125,765) (453,114) (2,423,907) - (13,299) (4,016,085)
Segment liabilities - 58,947,653 206,384,926 98,225,401 4,399,606 9,344,604 397,302,190
2017
Trading Payment
Corporate and Retail Commercial and
finance sales banking banking settlement Others Total

Rupees in ‘000
June 30, 2017 (Un-audited)

Total income - external 302,726 4,985,466 1,847,833 2,998,388 83,921 20,082 10,238,416
Inter-segment revenues - net = (4,387,136) 3,957,858 429,278

Total income 302,726 598,330 5,805,691 3,427,666 83,921 20,082 10,238,416
Total expenses (46,574) (374,396) (5,602,482) (3,323,033) (45,480) (146,842) (9,638,807)
Provisions / impairments - - (33,904) (44,734) - - (78,638)
Current taxation - - - - - (218,083) (218,083)
Prior year taxation - - - - - (115,944) (115,944)
Deferred taxation = = = = = (2,799) (2,799)
Net income / (loss) 256,152 223,934 169,305 59,899 38,441 (463,586) 284,145

December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Segment assets (gross) - 187,440,326 82,645,783 108,870,958 = 13,118,287 392,075,354
::SQETSE”' REHERTANE - 1,622,691 613,448 2,644,549 - 10,861 4,891,549
Segment provision required - (1,071,851) (283,887) (2,355,075) - (55,665) (3,766,478)
Segment liabilities = 57,126,105 219,370,286 83,137,017 3,824,278 8,181,861 371,639,547
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Lendings to financial

institutions Borrowings

(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, De(?;mber June 30, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017
————————————————————— (Riuezes (i) 000) ============mmm====
Companies in which parent
company holds 20% or more

Opening balance - - 4,000,000 -
Disbursements 1,100,000 - 93,600,000 110,840,000
Repayments (1,100,000) - (97,600,000) (106,840,000)
Closing balance - = - 4,000,000
Disbursements made during the half year

ended June 30, 2017 - 23,500,000
Repayments made during the half year
ended June 30, 2017 - (23,500,000,
Mark-up / return / interest earned for the half

year ended June 30, (Un-audited) 191 = 40,962 15,464
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Nature of transactions

Sale of government securities

Purchase of government securities

Sale of Sukuk

Investment made in associate company
Sale of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase of forward

foreign exchange contracts
Rent received / receivable
Rent expense paid / accrued
Letter of credits
Letter of guarantees
Reimbursement of expenses
Payment to staff benefit plan
Payment to staff contribution plan
Remuneration to

key management personnel
Director fees and allowances
Insurance claim received
Insurance premium paid
Expenses incurred on behalf of
Services rendered
Commission paid / accrued
Commission income
Dividend Income
Advisory fee
Trustee fee
Issuance of ordinary shares
Preference dividend paid
Services received

Nature of transactions
Issuance of ordinary shares
Rent expense paid / accrued
Reimbursement of expenses
Preference dividend paid

22. GENERAL

(Un-audited)

Subsidiary companies

Companies having
common directorship

Companies in which
parent company holds
20% or more

Other related parties

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
21,621 = - 108,549,165 14,077,302 3,515,681 670,098
= = - 12,555,449 520,213 257,031 317,319
- - - 112,576 - - -
= = = = 180,000 =
= = = 1,769,526 6,500,073 = =
= = = o 1,416,821 4,819,673 = =
1,837 1,657 - = - = - =
3,444 3,131 = = = = =
e 52,071 33,470 ° 57,562 70,283
- - - - 15,000 -
694 - 5 o 202 2,651
= = = = 175,118 118,308
- - 5 - 88,387 65,908
- - 5 - 320,028 275,927
= = = = 6,900 6,050
= = = 7,789 12,806 = =
= = = = 174,071 125,489 69,178 49,821
536 442 - - - - - -
2,100 1,800 = = = = =
714 1,687 = = = = = =
= 4,067 104 23,408 75,172 44,052 84,856 70
= 26,118 = = 6,158 45,549 = =
21,000 = - = - = 26,483 24,500
= = = 1,500 =
- - - - - - 18,491 8
B R - - 1,479 1,479
= = = = 389 196
Un-audited
Parent company
June 30,
2018 2017
--- (Rupees in ‘000) ---
2,180,623 =
838 756
2,806 3,162
174,450 174,450

The figures in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been

23.

rounded off to the nearest thousand.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Bank in their meeting held on August 27, 2018.

Chairman

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Director

Director

Chief Financial
Officer
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Chartered Accountants Tel: #9221 3565 0007-11
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road Fax: +9221 3568 1965

P.0. Box 15541, Karachi 75530 ey.khi®pk.ey.com

Building a better Pakistan ey.com/pk
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of JS Bank Limited
Report on review of Interim Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated condensed interim statement of financial
position of JS Bank Limited as at 30 June 2018, the related consolidated condensed interim
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated condensed
interim statement of changes in equity, and consolidated condensed interim statement of
cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-month period then ended (here-
in-after referred to as the "interim financial statements"). Management is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of this interim financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the financial statements based on our review.
The figures of the condensed interim profit and loss account and condensed interim
statement of comprehensive income for the three months ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June
2017 have not been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for
the six months period ended 30 June 2018.

Scope of review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s review report is
Shaikh Ahmed Salman.

sy Pt Bl

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: 27 August 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Yeung Giobal Uimided
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Consolidated Condensed Interim

Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments - net

Advances - net

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets - net

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities-net

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:

Share capital

Discount on issue of shares
Preference shares
Reserves

Unappropriated profit

Non-controlling interest

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

10
11

12

13

14
14
14

15

16

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
———————— Rupees in ‘000 --------
21,775,615 17,334,111
502,404 1,049,496
1,648,157 3,116,199
146,873,499 170,288,835
228,760,908 184,161,175
8,713,940 7,589,702
9,561,145 7,414,358
417,835,668 390,953,876
4,399,606 3,824,278
67,606,161 64,557,043
309,881,415 288,365,014
4,997,800 4,998,800
48,737 5,032
320,013 686,941
10,867,412 8,848,854
398,121,144 371,285,962
19,714,524 19,667,914
12,974,643 10,724,643
(2,855,401) (2,105,401)
- 1,500,000
1,709,144 1,540,987
5,866,297 5,463,357
17,694,683 17,123,586
1,477,040 1,463,454
19,171,723 18,587,040
542,801 1,080,874
19,714,524 19,667,914

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim

financial statements.

Chairman President and Director

Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated Condensed Interim

Profit And Loss Account
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Note

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / interest income

Provision against non-performing
loans and advances - net

Reversal against diminution in the
value of investments - net

Bad debts written off directly

Net mark-up / return / interest income after provisions

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Gain / (loss) on sale of securities - net

Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as held-for-trading - net

Share of profit from associate

Other income - net

Total non-mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses

Other provision - net

Other charges

Total non-mark-up / interest expenses

Extra ordinary / unusual items
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

- Current

- Prior years

- Deferred
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share 19

(Un-audited)

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
———————————————————————— [RlusEES (i 000 ========ememmmmmmemzz===
14,045,657 8,551,899 7,161,169 4,609,336
9,583,026 5,766,512 4,812,217 3,105,670
4,462,631 2,785,387 2,348,952 1,503,666
(123,867) (78,638) (78,837) (19,739)

57,848 8,505 42,142 6,709
(66,019) (70,133 (31,695) (13,030)
4,396,612 2,715,254 2,317,257 1,490,636
1,812,236 1,557,086 726,501 884,964
97,007 129,658 80,689 125,323
240,038 183,174 156,762 70,652
33,511 454,798 (28,012) 224,271
11,212 (8,428) 3,664 (515,547)
4,186 - 4,186 -
155,301 90,685 45,856 40,546
2,353,491 2,356,873 989,646 830,209
6,750,103 5,072,127 3,306,903 2,320,845
5,442,946 4,200,416 2,584,666 1,978,594
65,718 - 108,086 -
24,823 30,394 12,093 20,002
5,533,487 4,230,810 2,704,845 1,998,596
1,216,616 841,317 602,058 322,249
1,216,616 841,317 602,058 322,249
(497,763) (313,594) (277,238) (233,601)
(14,883) (115,944) (14,883) (115,944)
20,010 (514) 25,849 96,292
(492,636) (430,052) (266,272) (253,253)
723,980 411,265 335,786 68,996
711,991 360,210 335,948 42,485
11,989 51,055 (162) 26,511
723,980 411,265 335,786 68,996
Rupee
0.43 047 0.26 0.04

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman

Director Director

Chief Financial

Officer
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Consolidated Condensed Interim
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Iltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branch
Comprehensive income transferred to equity
Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity

Iltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
Related deferred tax liability
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the

the period - net of tax

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
——————————————————— Rupees in ‘000 -------------------
723,980 411,265 335,786 68,996
31,298 21 18,670 (347)
755,278 411,286 354,456 68,649
(1,403,684) (5619,487) (1,157,255) (507,663)
490,481 193,153 367,379 169,612
(913,203) (326,334) (789,876) (338,051)
(157,925) 84,952 (435,420) (269,402)
(97,190) 31,792 (393,323) (277,870)
(60,735) 53,160 (42,097) 8,468
(157,925) 84,952 (435,420) (269,402)

Surplus on revaluation of ‘operating fixed assets - net of tax’ and ‘non-banking assets - net of
tax’ is presented under a separate head below equity as ‘ surplus on revaluation of assets - net of
tax’ in accordance with the disclosure format for quarterly/ interim financial statements of banks
as prescribed by SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 2 of May 12, 2004 and Regulation for Debt

Property Swap issued vide BPRD Circular No. 1 dated January 01, 2016.

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim

financial statements.
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Consolidated Condensed Interim
Statement of Changes In Equity

For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Attributable to shareholders of the Bank

Share Discount o e oce Reserves Unappro- Non-
capital ONissueof ol ls - Exchange priated controlling
P shares AUy yranglation profit Sub total interest Total
Rupees in ‘000

Balance as at January 01, 2017 (Audited) 10,724,643 (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,334,138 (17) 4,858,613 16,311,976 1,434,391 17,746,367
Total comprehensive income for the

half year ended June 30, 2017
Profit after taxation - B E = E
Other comprehensive income - - = - 21

E E E E 2

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on

account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net - - - - - 107 107 - 107
Transaction with owners recorded directly in equity
Preference dividend for the period ended

December 31,2016 @ 12% p.a = o o o o (180,000)  (180,000) 5 (180,000)
Dividend paid to non controlling interest for

the year ended December 31, 2016 @ Rs.0.5 - - - - - - - (13,965) (13,965)
Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 56,829 - (56,829)
Balance as at June 30, 2017 (Un-audited) 10,724,643 (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,390,967 4 4,982,101 16,492,314 1,471,481 17,963,795

Total comprehensive income for the
period ended December 31, 2017

Profit after taxation | B | | = | | = | | = | = 666,629 666,629 (11,008) 655,621
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - - - - 12,215 (55,602 (43,387) - (43,387]

= = = = 12,215 611,027 623,242 (11,008) 612,234

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets

on account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net - - - - - 7,923 7,923 2,981 10,904
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on

account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net - - - - - 107 107 - 107
Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve = o = 137,801 = (137,801) - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2017 (Audited) 10,724,643 (2,105,401) 1,500,000 1,528,768 12,219 5463357 17,123,586 1,463,454 18,587,040

Total comprehensive income for the
half year ended June 30, 2018

Profit after taxation - - - - -
Other comprehensive income | - | | - | | - | | - | 31,298
- - - - 31,298

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net - - - - - 7,701 7,701 1,697 9,298

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets on
account of incremental depreciation for the periord - net - - - - - 107 107 - 107

Transaction with owners recorded directly in equity

Preference dividend paid for the year ended
December 31, 2017 @ 12% p.a. - - - - - (180,000)  (180,000) - (180,000)
Preference shares cancelled on conversion

into ordinary shares during the period (note14) - - (1,500,000 - - - (1,500,000) - (1,500,000)

Issuance of ordinary shares on conversion
of preference shares during the period (note14) 2,250,000 - - - - - 2,250,000 - 2,250,000

Discount on issue of ordinary shares

during the period (note14) -| |_(750,000) - - - - (750,000) - (750,000)
2,250,000 (750,000 - - - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Transfers
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 136,859 - (136,859) - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited) 12974643 - 1665627 __ 43517 _5866.297 17.694.683 _1.477,040 19171.723

* This represents reserve created under Section 21(i)(a) of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chairman President and Director Director Chief Financial
Chief Executive Officer Officer
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Consolidated Condensed Interim
Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Share of profit from associate

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Depreciation on non-banking assets

Amortisation of intangibles

Charge for defined benefit plan

Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments classified as held-for-trading
Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net
Reversal for diminution in the value of investments - net
Other provisions

Unrealised gain on revaluation of derivative instruments
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Finance cost

Provision for Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions

Investment in held-for-trading securities - net
Advances - net

Other assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities

Income tax paid

Gratuity paid

Finance cost paid

Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investment in available-for-sale securities

Net investment in held-to maturity securities
Investment in associated company

Dividend received

Investment in operating fixed assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Sub-ordinated loans

Preference dividend paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest
Capital repayment of finance lease obligations
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

-------- Rupees in ‘000 --------
1,216,616 841,317
(97,007) (129,558)
(4,186) 2
1,115,423 711,759
359,696 310,628
650 650
35,071 30,210
84,109 84,563
891 8,428
123,867 78,638
(31,653) (8,505)
65,718 -
(142,582) (20,257)
(58,550) (20,446)
3,992 -
24,291 17,391
465,500 481,300
1,580,923 1,193,059
1,459,376 8,373,886
3,231,558 42,732,601
(44,737,441) (33,439,794)
(1,310,312) (1.664,987)
(41,356,819) 16,001,706
575,328 2,201,649
3,124,520 37,454,067
21,516,401 34,844,822
2,085,274 2,338,376
27,301,523 76,838,914
(12,474,373) 94,033,679
(1,143,117) (493,370)
(175,118) (118,308)
(3,992) -
(13,796,600) 93,422,001
18,699,919 (73,819,295)
209,556 (14,307,432)
(180,000) =
75,303 105,873
(969,517) (690,142)
85,019 34,814
17,920,280 (88,676,182)
(1,000) (600)
(180,000) (180,000)
- (13,965)
(4,152) -
(185,152) (194,565
31,298 21
3,969,826 4,551,275
18,184,611 16,236,482
22,154,437 20,787,757

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chairman President and Director
Chief Executive Officer

42  JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

Director

Chief Financial
Officer




Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

1.

1.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The “Group” consists of:

Holding Company

JS Bank Limited (the Bank / JSBL), incorporated in Pakistan, is a scheduled bank, engaged
in commercial banking and related services. The Bank’s ordinary shares are listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The Bank is a subsidiary of Jahangir Siddiqui
& Co. Ltd. (JSCL). The registered office of the Bank is situated at Shaheen Commercial
Complex, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi. The Bank operates with 322 (December
31, 2017: 322) branches / sub-branches in Pakistan and one wholesale banking branch in
Bahrain (December 31, 2017: one). The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)
has asigned the long-term entity rating of the Bank to ‘AA-’ (Double A Minus) and short-
term entity rating at ‘A1+’ (A One Plus), which is the highest possible short-term rating. The
ratings denote a very low expectation of credit risk and indicate very strong capacity for
timely payment of financial commitments.

Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, JSIBL, (formerly Citicorp Investment Bank
Limited which was acquired by JSCL on February 01, 1999), and its holding company,
JSCL, entered into a Framework Agreement with American Express Bank Limited,
New York (AMEX) on November 10, 2005 for acquisition of its American Express Bank
Limited - Pakistan Branches, (AEBL). Consequently, a new banking company, JSBL was
incorporated on March 15, 2006 and a restricted Banking License was issued by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on May 23, 2006.

A Transfer Agreement was executed on June 24, 2006 between JSIBL and JSBL for the
transfer of entire business and undertaking of JSIBL to JSBL and a separate Transfer
Agreement was also executed on June 24, 2006, between AMEX and JSBL for the transfer
of AEBL’s commercial banking business in Pakistan with all assets and liabilities (other than
certain excluded assets and liabilities) (AEBL business). The shareholders of JSIBL and
JSBL in their respective extra ordinary general meetings held on July 31, 2006 approved
a Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under Section 48 of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Scheme was initially approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter No. SC/NBFC(J)-R/JSIBL/2006/517 dated
September 28, 2006. Subsequently, the Scheme was sanctioned by the SBP vide its order
dated December 02, 2006 and, in accordance therewith, the effective date of amalgamation
was fixed at December 30, 2006.
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Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

1.1.2 Subsidiary companies

44

JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)

JS Global Capital Limited, JSGCL, is principally owned by the Bank, holding 67.16% of its
equity interest. The Bank acquired effective controlling interest in JSGCL on December 21,
2011 and April 15, 2016 of 51.05% and 16.11% respectively. The ownership interest has
increased by 16.11%, without any change in the cost of investment, due to the fact that
JSGCL has bought back its 11,993,000 ordinary shares out of its 50 million ordinary shares
in 2016. JSGCL is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Act, 2017. The shares of the JSGCL are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). Further,
the JSGCL is a corporate member of PSX and member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange.
The principal business of the JSGCL is to carry out share brokerage, money market, forex
and commodity brokerage, advisory and consultancy services. Other activities include
investment in a mix of listed and unlisted equity and debt securities and reverse repurchase
transactions. The registered office of the JSGCL is situated at 6th floor, Faysal House,
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan.

JS Investments Limited (JSIL)

JS Investments Limited, JSIL, is principally owned by the Bank, holding 65.16% of its equity
interest. The Bank acquired effective controlling interest in JSIL on November 01, 2012
and December 22, 2015 of 52.24% and 12.92% respectively. The ownership interest has
increased by 12.92%, without any change in the cost of investment, due to the fact that
JSIL has bought back its 19,828,182 ordinary shares out of its 100 million ordinary shares
in 2016. JSIL is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan on February 22, 1995
under the Companies Act, 2017. The shares of the JSIL are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX), formerly since April 24, 2007. The registered office of the JSIL is situated
at 7th Floor, ‘The Forum’, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.

The JSIL has obtained the license of an “Investment Advisor” and “Asset Management
Company” (AMC) under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 20083 (the NBFC Rules) and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). In addition, the Company has
also obtained registration to act as Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension
System Rules, 2005.

- At period end, JSIL is an asset management company of the following funds:
Open ended funds:

- JS Value Fund

- JS Growth Fund

- Unit Trust of Pakistan

- JS Income Fund

- JS Islamic Fund

- JS Fund of Funds

- JS Islamic Income Fund
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Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

3.1

- JS Cash Fund

- JS Large Cap. Fund

- JS Capital Protected Fund V

- JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - (JS IHFOF)

- JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds-2 (JS IHFOF-2)
- JS Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund

Pension fund

- JS Pension Savings Fund
- JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund

These funds have been treated as related parties in these consolidated condensed interim
financial statements.

JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited (JSACL)

JS Bank owns JS ABAMCO Commaodities Limited, JSSACL, indirectly through its subsidiary
JS Investment Limited (JSIL) which has 100% holding in JSACL. JSACL was incorporated
on September 25, 2007 as a public unlisted company under the Companies Act, 2017
and is a wholly owned subsidiary company of JSIL (a subsidiary of Holding Company). The
principal activities of JSACL are to deal and effectuate commaodity contracts; to become
member of commodity exchange including National Commodity Exchange Limited (NCEL)
and to carry on the business as brokers, advisory and consultancy services, dealers and
representative of all kinds of commodity contracts and commodity backed securities. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 7th Floor, ‘The Forum’, Khayaban-e-Jami,
Clifton, Karachi. The Company has not commenced its commercial operations up to the
balance sheet date.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The basis of consolidation adopted in the preparation of these consolidated condensed
interim financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standards (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017;
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Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5
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- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, The Companies
Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of
IAS 34, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, The Companies Act,
2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.”

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property (IAS 40) for Banking
companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated April 28, 2008, the IFRS - 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these
consolidated condensed interim financial statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by
the SBP.

IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’ is effective for the Bank’s accounting period beginning on
or after January 01, 2009. All banking companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their
annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD Circular No. 4
dated February 17, 2006, ‘Revised Forms of Annual Financial Statements’, effective from
the accounting year ended December 31, 2006. The management of the Bank believes that
as the SBP has defined the segment categorization in the above mentioned circular, the
SBP’s requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements is
based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

IFRS10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” was made applicable from period beginning
on or after January 01, 2015 vide S.R.O 633())/2014 dated July 10, 2014 by SECP.
However, SECP has directed that the requirements of consolidation under section 228
of the Companies Act, 2017 and IFRS-10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” are not
applicable in case of investment by companies in mutual funds established under trust
structure, through S.R.O 56(l) /2016 dated January 28, 2016. Accordingly, the requirements
of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these consolidated
condensed interim financial statements.

The disclosures made in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements have
been limited based on the format prescribed by the SBP vide BSD Circular No. 2 dated
May 12, 2004 and International Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting” and
do not include all the disclosures required in the annual financial statements. Accordingly,
these consolidated condensed interim financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated annual audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

6.1

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except that certain assets are stated at revalued amounts /
fair value as disclosed in the respective notes of the consolidated annual audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions used in the preparation of these
consolidated condensed interim financial statements are consistent with those applied in
the preparation of the consolidated annual audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated condensed interim financial statements are the same as those applied
in the preparation of the consolidated annual audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

Surplus / Deficit on Revaluation of Operating Fixed Assets

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance) was repealed through the
enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017. However, as directed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide circular number 23 dated Oct 4,
2017, the financial reporting requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made
applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.

The repealed Ordinance specified the accounting treatment for the surplus on revaluation
on fixed assets, wherein, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular property was to be
adjusted against the total balance in the surplus account or, if no surplus existed, was to
be charged to the profit and loss account as an impairment of the asset. However, the
Companies Act, 2017 removed the specific provisions allowing the above treatment and
hence, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular property is now to be accounted for in
accordance with applicable financial reporting standards, which requires that such deficit is
to be taken to the profit and loss account as an impairment.

Consequently, the Group has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on
revaluation of fixed assets and accordingly, any surplus/deficit arising on revaluation of
owned property and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is accounted for
at individual assets level. The above change in accounting policy did not have any effect on
these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018 47



Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
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6.2

6.3
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Adoption of IFRS-9 by Foreign Operations (Bahrain branch)

During the current period, the Bank’s Bahrain Operations, in line with their locally applicable
regulatory framework, has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’. As permitted by the
transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Branch elected not to restate comparative figures.
Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of
transition were recognised in the profit and loss account of the current period.

The financial effects due to the adoption of IFRS 9 by the Bahrain branch on these
consolidated condensed interim financial statements are as follows:

(Un-audited)
June 30,
2018
Rupees in ‘000
General provision - under IFRS-9

Balances with other banks 12
Lendings to financial institutions 8,666
Investments - net 85,567
Advances - net 13,841
Decrease in profit before tax 108,086
Related deferred tax asset (37,830)
Decrease in profit after tax 70,256

New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are considered
not to be relevant on the Group operations and therefore not detailed in these consolidated
condensed interim financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies applied during the period are
consistent with those disclosed in the consolidated annual financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Note ~ --—--- Rupees in ‘000 -----
Call money lendings - net of provision 8.1 1,648,157 3,003,443
Due against bills re-discounting - 112,756
1,648,157 3,116,199

The amount is net of general provision of Rs.8.67 million resulted from adoption of IFRS 9
by Bahrain (see note 6.2).
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Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

9.

9.1

INVESTMENTS - net

INVESTMENTS BY TYPES:

Held-for-trading securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Term finance certificates - listed
Sukuk certificates - listed

Open ended mutual funds

Available-for-sale securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Preference shares of listed companies
Term finance certificates - listed

Term finance certificates - unlisted
Sukuk certificates - unlisted

Open end mutual funds

Foreign currency bonds

Held-to maturity securities
Pakistan investment bonds
Investments in associate
Total investments at cost

Less: Provision for diminution
in the value of investments

Less: General provision - under IFRS-9
Investments (net of provision)

Unrealised gain / (loss) gain on revaluation of

investments classified as held-for-trading

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation

of available-for-sale securities

Total investments at market value

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Held by Given as Held by Given as
Group collateral Total Group collateral Total
Note Rupees in ‘000
4,670,853 - 4,670,853 6,835,735 926,032 7,761,767
- - - 709,872 709,872
1,082,057 - 1,082,057 326,570 o 326,570
CRA 25,557 - 25,557 14,263 = 14,263
116,371 - 116,371 85,512 = 55,512
9.1.2 126,228 - 126,228 423,465 = 423,465
6,021,066 - 6,021,066 8,365,417 926,032 9,291,449
825,877 - 825,877 11,501,193 2,991,504 14,492,697
37,162,031 48,616,601 85,778,632 54,600,373 39,372,049 93,972,422
9.1.3 | 3,811,805 . 3,811,805 3,704,524 = 3,704,524
13,406 - 13,406 18,406 = 13,406
136,589 - 136,589 136,589 = 136,589
182,322 - 182,322 182,322 = 182,322
9.1.4 941,338 - 941,338 902,052 = 902,052
899,333 - 899,333 1,631,000 = 1,631,000
9.1.5 1,428,895 - 1,428,895 1,378,107 = 1,378,107
3,708,080 4,318,557 8,026,637 1,899,702 2,431,932 4,331,634
49,109,676 52,935,158 102,044,834 75,949,268 44,795,485 120,744,753
41,188,929 - 41,188,929 41,398,485 = 41,398,485
9.1.6 184,186 - 184,186 = = =
96,503,857 52,935,158 149,439,015 125,713,170 45,721,517 171,434,687
(1,446,972) - (1,446,972) (1,504,819) = (1,504,819)
6.2 (85,567) - (85,567) - - -
94,971,318 52,935,158 147,906,476 124,208,351 45,721,517 169,929,868
7,782 - 7,782 (3,944) (14) (3,958)
9.1.7&

15 62,215 (1,102,974) (1,040,759) 558,408 (195,483) 362,925
95,041,315 51,832,184 146,873,499 124,762,815 45,526,020 170,288,835

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

49




Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

9.1.1

10.

50

This represents investment in a related party amounting to Rs. 25.557 million (December
31, 2017: Rs.14.263 million) having a market value of Rs. 25.678 million (December 31,
2017: Rs.14.307 million).

This represents investment in a related party amounting to Rs. 126.228 million (December
31, 2017: Rs.198.465 million) having a market value of Rs. 125.683 million (December 31,
2017: Rs.201.250 million).

Included herein are the investments in related parties amounting to Rs. 1,806.637 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs.1,763.581 million) and having market value of Rs. 2,465.320
million (December 31, 2017: Rs.2,296.841 million)

Included herein are the investments in a related party, of Rs. 391.478 million (December 31,
2017: Rs.391.478 million) at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% to 11% p.a maturing
between December 04, 2017 to October 19, 2020. Due to weak financial position of the
company the Group has recognised full impairment loss on these term finance certificates.

Included herein is an investment in a related party amounting to Rs. 1,428.895 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs.1,378.107 million) having a market value of Rs. 1,892.192 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs.1,728.710 million).

During the period, the Bank has invested in the shares of Omer Jibran Enginering Industries
Limited, a public unlisted company (9.6% shareholding). The Bank has classified the
investment as associate on account of it’s significant influence over the investee company.

ADVANCES - net (Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc. Note ~  ----- Rupees in ‘000 -----
In Pakistan 200,750,632 160,657,078
Outside Pakistan 1,541,643 702,934

202,292,275 161,360,012
Net investment in finance lease in Pakistan 17,281,529 18,781,334

Bills discounted and purchased (excluding market treasury bills)

Payable in Pakistan 7,178,298 6,174,461
Payable outside Pakistan 4,885,827 5,584,681
12,064,125 11,759,142

Advances - gross 231,637,929 186,900,488
Provision against non-performing advances - specific 10.1 (2,722,959) (2,638,960)
Provision against advances - general (140,221) (100,353)
General provision - under IFRS-9 6.2 (13,841) -
(2,877,021) (2,739,313)

Advances - net of provision 228,760,908 184,161,175
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11.

12.

10.1

Advances include Rs. 3,642.861 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.3,257.997

million) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed below:

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Provision Provision
Domestic  Overseas Total required held
------------------------------- Rupees in ‘000 -----------==--=--mmmmmemeee
Category of classification
Other assets especially mentioned 300,985 - 300,985 1,279 1,279
Substandard 227,744 - 227,744 47,261 47,261
Doubtful 305,892 - 305,892 55,381 55,381
Loss 2,808,240 - 2,808,240 2,619,038 2,619,038
3,642,861 - 3,642,861 2,722,959 2,722,959
December 31, 2017 (Audited)
Provision Provision
Domestic ~ Overseas Total required held
——————————————————————————————— [RIUEEES i) W00 o mmmnnmaas
Category of classification
Other assets especially mentioned 5,222 5,222 - -
Substandard 336,818 336,818 44,307 44,307
Doubtful 131,328 131,328 7,333 7,333
Loss 2,784,629 2,784,629 2,587,320 2,587,320
3,257,997 3,257,997 2,638,960 2,638,960

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
11.1

During the period, the Group made additions of Rs.969.517 million including capital

work in process of Rs.393.437 million (June 30, 2017: Rs.690.142 million) and
deletions of Rs.215.602 million (June 30, 2017: Rs.50.358 million) having written
down value of Rs. 26.469 million (June 30, 2017: Rs. 14.368 million).

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fixed deposits

Savings deposits

Current accounts - non-remunerative
Margin accounts

Financial institutions
Remunerative deposits
Non-remunerative deposits

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

Note — -------- Rupees in '000 --------
128,569,643 131,902,422
58,239,309 47,266,416
73,300,179 70,197,106
4,396,048 3,967,204
264,505,179 253,333,148

44,226,254” 34,012,15
1,149,982 1,019,712
45,376,236 35,031,866
12.1 309,881,415 288,365,014
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(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
—————— Rupees in ‘000 -----
121 Particulars of deposits
In local currency 295,011,735 275,209,678
In foreign currencies 14,869,680 13,155,336

309,881,415 288,365,014

13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - net

Deferred tax (debits) arising from:

Unused tax losses (51,217) (48,043)
Provision against investments (57,149) (567,149)
Provision against loans, advances and trade debts (133,950) (124,518)
Provision against other assets (853) (15,682
General provision - under IFRS-9 (37,830) -
Provision for donation (79) (197)
Surplus on revaluation of investment classified as available-for-sale (637,422) (46,941)
Provision for Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (43,049) (46,332)

(861,549) (338,862)

Deferred tax credits arising due to:

Operating fixed assets 216,999 220,463
Goodwill 512,268 512,268
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment

classified as held-for-trading - (620)
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of derivative instruments 57,172 25,227
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 392,989 266,274
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets

acquired In satisfaction of claims 2,134 2,191

1,181,562 1,025,803
320,013 686,941

14. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

14.1 During the period, after having SBP approval vide its letter No. ‘BPRD/LD-01/602-
AM&A0A/16933/2018-8446’, the shareholders of the Bank in their Annual General Meeting held on
March 07, 2018 increased its authorised capital by Rs.5 billion, divided into 500 million ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each.
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14.2

15.

15.1

On February 19, 2018, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Bank has also increased by Rs.
2,250 million divided into 225 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. The increase was on account of
conversion of unlisted preference shares of Rs. 1,500 million divided into 150 million shares of Rs. 10
each at a conversion ratio of 1:1.5 (i.e. for every one preference share one and half ordinary shares
were issued). The ordinary shares are issued at Rs. 6.67 per share i.e. at a discount of Rs. 3.33 per
share as per the approvals of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter No.
EMD/CI/102/2010 dated December 19, 2013 and State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter No. BPRD/
BA&CA/649/19755/2013 dated December 30, 2013.

As at June 30, 2018, Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (the parent company) held 973,307,324 (December
31, 2017: 755,245,007) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and controls 75.02% holding (December 31,
2017: 70.42%).

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

———————— Rupees in ‘000 --------
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax

Available-for-sale securities (583,715) 329,226
Operating fixed assets 1,031,573 656,598
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 94,943 95,050

542,801 1,080,874
Group’s share 339,172 804,521
Non-controlling interest 203,629 276,353

542,801 1,080,874

At the reporting date the Bank has carried out the revaluation exercise by an independent valuer,
which has resulted in additional surplus on leasehold lands and buildings of Rs.117.166 million and
Rs.410.933 million over their existing written down value of Rs. 1,088.960 million and Rs.1,627.694
million, respectively.

The fair values were determined with reference to market based evidence, based on active market
prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered necessary, and adjusted for any difference
in nature, location or condition of the specific properties.

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of leasehold lands and buildings would have been
lower by Rs.241.820 million and Rs. 1,195.785 million respectively, and net surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets, deferred tax liability and increamental depreciation would have been lower by Rs.1,031.572
million, Rs. 406.033 million and Rs. 13.363 million respectively.
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(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Note =~ -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
16.1 Transaction-related contingent liabilities
Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, advance payment

guarantees, shipping guarantees and standby letters of credit
related to particular transactions.

i) Government 30,721,495 31,008,823
i) Banking companies and other financial institutions 6,305,043 5,532,988
i) Others 16.1.1 4,073,271 8,477,789

41,099,809 45,019,600

16.1.1 Included herein the outstanding guarantees of Rs.13.201 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.31.454
million) of related parties.

16.2 Trade-related contingent liabilities

Documentary credits 16.2.1 21,483,396 21,558,098

16.2.1  Included herein is an outstanding amount of Rs.63.808 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.44.016 million)
of related parties.

16.3 Commitments in respect of forward lending

Forward commitment to extend credit 1,357,014 21,398,301

16.4 Commitment in respect of capital expenditure 229,650 94,975

16.5 Commitments in respect of derivatives instruments
16.5.1 Forward exchange contracts

Purchase 15,104,657 6,689,099

Sale 12,289,466 4,960,361

16.5.2 Forward investment securities
16.5.2.1 Government and equity securities

Purchase 258,005 1,496,072

Sale 1,098,222 439,443
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(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

———————— Rupees in ‘000 --------

16.5.2.2 Foreign currency bonds

16.5.3

16.5.4

16.6

16.7

17.

18

18.1

Purchase - 1,496,072
Sale - 439,443
Cross currency swaps (notional principal) 4,940,680 4,223,400
Options (notional principal) 2,988,506 2,421,402

Bank Guarantee from a commercial Bank in favor
of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 400,000 400,000

Outstanding (purchase) / sale against margin financing contracts - net (47,977) 4,529

Other provision - net

This includes additional provision made during the period on account of adoption of IFRS 9 by Bahrain
branch of the Bank (see note 6.2), and reversal of provision against other assets of Rs. 42.368 million.

Taxation

JS Bank Limited

During the period, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has allowed the appeal effects
of tax years 2008-2013, in the light of appeal orders given by Commissioner Inland Revenue — Appeals
(the CIRA), as a result thereof effect of certain significant issues have been allowed (i.e. accrued markup
income, repair and maintenance expense, provision against advances under Rule 1(c) of seventh
schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, dividend income and partial reliefs given in reversal
of provision against advances and contract wages). Appeal effect of certain issues (amortisation of
Goodwill and withholding tax monitoring on contract wages) for which appeals of the tax department
are pending at higher appellate forums are kept pending and will be decided on outcome of such
department appeals. Appeal effect order is pending in respect of tax year 2014 and 2015

For tax year 2008, ACIR has allowed the appeal effect after consideration of the CIRA decision that
assessment in the year had become barred by time limitation and hence additions or disallowances
made through the first amendment order had not legal effect. As a result of passing of appeal effect
order, the income and tax liability have been reverted to position as per the return filed

For tax year 2010-2013, the Bank has not accepted the appeal effects in which benefits are not
allowed on the direction of the CIRA and filed further appeals with CIRA and ACIR is directed to re-
examine the issues in the light of directions of predecessor CIRA's decision and issue revise appeal
effect orders after duly adjudicating as per law ensuring adequate opportunity of being heard to the
Bank.

The management of Bank is confident that the appeals filed above and which are already pending at
Appellate Tribunal on matters where relief has not been allowed at CIRA level will be decided in the
Bank’s favor and accordingly no demand for payment would arise.
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19.

19.1

20

56

Half year ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Noi® ~ — =eeeemmmmmmmmm== RUjgEzs (i Q) ==mmmmmmmmmmmmmmes
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation for the period - attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Holding Company for diluted earnings 711,991 360,210 335,948 42,485
Preference dividend paid for the year ended
December 31, 2017
@ 12% p.a. (December 31, 2016: 12% p.a) (180,000) (180,000) - -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Holding Company for basic earnings 531,991 180,210 335,948 42,485
Numbers

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary
shares during the period for basic and diluted earnings ~ 1,236,552,660  1,072,464,262 1,297,464,262 1,072,464,262

Rupee

Basic and diluted earnings per share 19.1 0.43 0.17 0.26 0.04

The diluted earnings per share increased for the half year ended when taking the convertible
preference shares into account, therefore the convertible preference shares are anti-dilutive and are
excluded from the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings
per share. Further, no impact of dilution has been taken for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, due
to conversions of preference shares as disclosed in note14 of these consolidated condensed interim
financial statements.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted
market price. Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot
be calculated with sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for assets and
liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. The provision for impairment
of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy as stated
in note 7.10 to the consolidated annual audited financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2017.

Management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not
significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature
or in the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently repriced.
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20.1

20.2

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires the Group to classify fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has following

levels:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values

ltem

Valuation approach and input used

Units of mutual funds

Fair values of investments in units of mutual funds are determined
based on redemption prices disclosed at the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) as at the close of the business
days.

Shares of listed companies

Fair values of investments in listed equity securities are valued on
the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan
Stock Exchange.

Pakistan Investment Bonds
/ Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Market Treasury Bills
are derived using PKRYV rates (Reuters page).

Term Finance Certificates
and Bonds

Investments in debt securities (comprising Term Finance
Certificates, Bonds and any other security issued by a company
or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the
form of redeemable capital) are valued on the basis of the rates
announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP)
in accordance with the methodology prescribed by the SECP.

Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. The valuation
techniques take into account the relevant underlying parameters
including foreign currencies involved, interest rates, yield curves,
volatilities, contracts duration, etc.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value

is observable.
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On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets classified as ‘held-for-trading securities’

Market treasury bills

Ordinary shares of listed companies
Open end mutual funds

Sukuk certificates - listed

Term finance certificates - listed

Financial assets classified as ‘available-for-sale
securities’

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Open end mutual funds

Foreign currency bonds

Non-Financial Assets
Operating fixed assets (Lease hold lands and buildings)
Non banking asset under satisfaction of claims

Off balance sheet financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts

Purchase
Sale

Forward government and equity securities
Purchase

Sale

Cross currency swaps (notional principal)

Options (notional principal)

JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
----------------------- [Rlujgzzs (i) 0100) ====mmmmmmmmamamama==s
- 4,669,962 - 4,669,962
1,091,060 - - 1,091,060
- 125,683 - 125,683
- 116,464 - 116,464
- 25,678 - 25,678
1,091,060 4,937,787 - 6,028,847
- 825,791 - 825,791
- | | 84,304,268 - | | 84,304,268
3,818,504 - - 3,818,504
- 1,811,874 - 1,811,874
- 7,483,927 - 7,483,927
3,818,504 94,425,860 - 98,244,364
4,909,564 99,363,647 - 104,273,211
- - 3,244,754 3,244,754
- - 202,688 202,688
- - 3,447,442 3,447,442
4,909,564 99,363,647 3,447,442 107,720,653
- 15,450,873 - 15,450,873
- 12,509,974 - 12,509,974
- 258,417 - 258,417
1,107,712 - - 1,107,712
- 5,690,832 - 5,690,832
- 3,002,639 - 3,002,639
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On balance sheet financial instruments

As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Sukuk certificates - listed

Open end mutual funds

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Open end mutual funds

Foreign currency bonds

Non-Financial Assets

Operating fixed assets (Lease hold lands and buildings) - -
Non banking asset under satisfaction of claims

Off balance sheet financial instruments

Forward exchange contracts
Purchase

Sale

Forward government and equity securities
Purchase

Sale
Cross currency swaps (notional principal)

Options (notional principal)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------------- Rupees in ‘000 -----------------------
= 7,761,553 = 7,761,553
- 707,598 - 707,598
322,414 - - 322,414
= 69,678 = 69,678
= 426,249 = 426,249
322,414 8,965,078 - 9,287,492
© 14,492,712 @ 14,492,712
- | | 93,429,759 - | | 98,429,759
3,695,918 - - 3,695,918
= 1,728,711 = 1,728,711
- 4,350,638 - 4,350,638
3,695,918 114,001,820 - 117,597,738
3,918,332 122,966,898 - 126,885,230
2,745,141 2,745,141
- - 203,339 203,339
= = 2,948,480 2,948,480
3,918,332 122,966,898 2,948,480 129,833,710
= 6,851,332 = 6,851,332
= 5,061,071 = 5,061,071
- 1,495,823 - 1,495,823
323,632 116,000 o 439,632
- 4,489,958 = 4,489,958
- 2,426,276 - 2,426,276
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21.

SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment analysis with respect to business activities are as follows:

June 30, 2018 (un-audited)

Total income -external
Inter-segment revenues - net
Total income

Total expenses

(Provisions) / reversal
Current taxation

Prior year taxation

Deferred taxation

Net income / (loss)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

June 30, 2018 (un-audited)

Segment assets (gross)
Segment non performing assets
Segment provision required
Segment liabilities

June 30, 2017 (un-audited)

Total income -external
Inter-segment revenues - net
Total income

Total expenses

(Provisions) / reversals
Current taxation

Prior year taxation

Deferred taxation

Net income / (loss)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

December 31, 2017 (audited)

Segment assets (gross)
Segment non performing loans
and Impaired Investments
Segment provision required
Segment liabilities

60

2018
Corporate Tradingand  Retail ~Commercial Payment and Asset
finance sales banking banking Brokerage N it Others Total
Rupees in ‘000
317,437 5491963 3,498,659 6,381,647 124,554 355,750 173,131 56,007 16,399,148
- (2,733386) 4553866 (1,820,480) - - - - -
317,437 2,758,577 8,052,525 4,561,167 124,554 355,750 173,131 56,007 16,399,148
(53,866) (2,896,846) (7,063,639 (3,980,601) (59.058)  (339,800)  (186,562)  (470,423) (15,050,795)
- (62591) (46513 (91,196 - - 26,195 4368 (131,737)
- - - - - - - (497,763) (497,763)
- - - - - - - (14,883 (14,883)
- - - - - - - 20,010 20,010
263,571 (200,860) 942,373 489,370 65,496 15,950 12,764 (864,684) 723,980
711,991
11,989
723,980
- 163,239,737 70,213,225 166,621,752 - 3866900 2,731,087 16,005204 422,677,855
- 1,040,198 926,813 2,716,048 - 745,784 80,318 13,299 5,522,460
- (1125765)  (453,114) (2,423,907) - (745,784 80,318 (13299  (4,842,187)
- 58,947,653 226,434,428 98,225,401 4,399,606 506,343 263,104 9,344,609 398,121,144
2017
Corporate  Trading and Retail ~ Commercial Payment and Asset
finance sales banking banking settlement  Brokerage Management  Others Total
Rupees in ‘000

302,726 4,985,466 1,847,833 2,998,388 83,921 494,146 178,673 20,082 10,911,135
(4,387,136) 3,957,858 429,278 = = = = =
302,726 598,330 5,805,691 3,427,666 83,921 494,146 178,673 20,082 10,911,135
(46,674)  (336,541) (5,602,482) (3,323,033) (45,480)  (358,545) (140,188)  (146,842) (9,999,685)
= (33,904) (44,734) = 8,505 = (70,133)
~ - - B - (313,594)  (313,594)
s - s s (115944)  (115,944)
s . o o s . . (514) (514)
256,152 261,789 169,305 59,899 38,441 135,601 46,890 (5656,812) 411,265
360,210
51,055
411,265
185,483,705 82,645,783 108,870,958 2,710,777 2,743,142 13,118,285 395,672,650
= 1,622,691 613,448 2,644,549 = 745,784 106,512 10,861 5,743,845
(1,071,851)  (283,887) (2,355,075) (745784)  (106512)  (55,665) (4,618,774)
57,126,105 219,370,286 83,137,017 3,824,278  (636,426) 233,340 8,231,362 371,285,962
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Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Companies in which parent
company holds 20% or more

Opening balance
Disbursements
Repayments
Closing balance

Disbursements made during the half year
ended June 30, 2017

Repayments made during the half year
ended June 30, 2017

Mark-up / return / interest earned / expensed for the half year
ended June 30, (Un-audited)

62 JS Bank Half Year Ended June 30, 2018

Lendings to financial

institutions Borovinos

(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,  June 30, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017
- - 4,000,000 -

1,100,000 - 93,600,000 110,840,000

(1,100,000) - (97,600,000) (106,840,000)

- - - 4,000,000

- 23,500,000

- (23,500,000)

191 - 40,962 15,464




Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Nature of transactions

Sale of Government Securities
Purchase of Government Securities

Purchase of Term Finance Certificate

Investment made in associate company

Sale of Sukuk / liara Sukuk
Sale of shares / units
Purchase of shares / units
Purchase of forward

foreign exchange contracts
Sale of forward
foreign exchange contracts
Letter of credits
Letter of guarantees
Payment to staff contribution plan
Payment to staff benefit plan
Remuneration of

key management personnel
Director fees and allowances
Insurance claim received
Insurance premium paid
Rent income received / receivable
Expenses incurred on behalf
Reimbursement of expenses
Commission income
Dividend income
Advisory fee
Trustee fee
Royalty expenses
Remunerative income
Issuance of ordinary shares
Preference dividend paid

Services received

Companies having

Companies in which parent

common directorship company holds 20% or more Cleilieaiecalies
June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

————————————————————————————————————————— (Unaudited) --------==--=====mmmmmmmmmmmm e

——————————————————————————————————————— (Rupegs in ‘000) ----------=====mmmmmmmmmeeemnacnanneae
- = 108,549,165 14,077,302 3,515,681 670,098
- e 12,565,449 520,213 257,031 317,319
- = - = 15,000 =
- = = 180,000
- = 112,676 = -
- o - = 531,638 419,708
- 5 - o 451,638 352,512
- = 1,416,821 4,819,673 -
- = 1,769,526 6,500,073 -

52,071 33,470 - B 57,562 70,283
- 15,000 =
- = = 100,125 75,706
- = = 175,118 118,308
- 5 - o 370,891 315,411
- = - = 8,175 7,250
- = 7,789 12,806 - =
- = 178,370 129,640 75,640 49,821
662 854 - = 7,244 6,900
359 434 239 = 23,628 2,759
367 499 - = 17,509 13,064
104 23,408 84,855 51,276 89,848 9,229
- = 6,158 45,549 632 40,746
- - - - 26,483 24,500
- = 1,500 = - =
- = - 6,250 5,000
- 95,019 104,011
- = - 18,491
R . - 1,479 1,479
- - - 389 196
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Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim

Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2018

Parent company
June 30,
2018 2017
Un-audited
————— (Rupees in ‘000) -----

Nature of transactions

Issuance of ordinary shares 2,180,623 -
Preference dividend 174,450 174,450
Principal received on term finance certificates 3,750 -
Markup Received on term finance certificates 563 o
Rent and utilities expense paid / accrued 26,617 30,833
Reimbursement of expenses 863 3,212
Advisory fee 11,180 -
Commission income 496 2,096
Expenses incurred on behalf 30 31
23. GENERAL

23.1 The figures in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand.

24. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors of the Bank in their meeting held on August 27, 2018.

Chairman President and Director Director Chief Financial
Chief Executive Officer Officer
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